
             
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner                   Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain               Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, September 12, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Best 

 
Salute to the Flag: Audience Participation 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 
 A) Yard of the Month Award for September 2016 – Sharon Okubo & Michael Kilpatrick 
of 156 Carlisle Drive 
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins.  This portion of the meeting 
also includes any pre-screened video submittals. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 15, 2016 – Workshop Meeting  
B) August 22, 2016 - Regular Meeting 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  

 
 A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of September 1, 
2016 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period 

 
7. Public Hearings: 

 
A) A Resolution of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs Tentatively 

Approving Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget; Confirming Date, Time And Place Of Final Public 
Hearing 

  
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Approval of City Attorney’s Invoice for August 2016 in the Amount of $13,473.00 



 
B) Recommendation by Golf that Council Approve an increase to the City’s current 

open purchase order with Acushnet, in an amount not to exceed $2,500, for Titlest and Foot Joy 
merchandise to be re-sold in the golf pro shop as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget 
pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
9. Old Business:  

 
A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) Resolution – A Resolution  Of The City Council Of The City  Of  Miami Springs,  

Florida,  Authorizing And Approving Correspondence To Miami-Dade County  In  Support Of The 
Four-Municipality Annexation Agreement Involving The City Of Doral, The Town Of Medley, The 
Village  Of Virginia Gardens, And The City Of Miami Springs;   Authorizing   The   City   Manager 
 And   The Mayor To Execute The Subject Correspondence And Transmit  The Same  To Miami-
Dade County; Providing For An Effective Date  

 
10. New Business:   
 
 A) Consideration of approval of a five year renewal agreement with American Traffic 
Solutions to maintain the City’s Red Light Camera Enforcement Program  
 
 B) Consideration of selection of an applicant to operate the Farmer’s Market from 
October 2016 to March 2017 
 

C) Recommendation by the Administration that Council approves the designation of 
$150,000 to cover the initial costs of the design/build process of constructing a new Senior 
Center building 

 
D) Consideration of request from RenewPACE that Council approve their program 

within the City of Miami Springs 
 
E) Consideration of Atlantic Golf Management Letter of Interest in Managing the Miami 

Springs Golf and Country Club Operation 
 
F) Consideration by Council to determine whether to place a six month moratorium on 

the opening of Cannabis Dispensaries within City limits or consideration to creating an Ordinance 
for an upcoming meeting specifying where within the City these facilities can be allowed 

 
G) Recommendation that Council authorize the acceptance of the attached agreement 

with the Fraternal Order of Police (FOP) extending the ½% reduction in Police pension 
contributions for an additional one year beginning October 1, 2016 and ending September 30, 
2017, as funds were budgeted in the FY16/17 budget 

 
H) Recommendation by Finance that Council award the City RFP #05-15-16 to BB&T 

Bank, the lowest responsible bidder and authorize the execution of an award contract for banking 
services as funds are to be approved in the FY16/17 Budget, pursuant to Section 31.11 (E)(1) of 
the City Code 

 
I) Discussion on the proposed plan by Code Compliance to do a sweep for City-wide 

alley trimming 



 
J) Recommendation by the Historic Preservation Board to award Fran Whiteman the 

Pioneer Resident Award 
 

11. Other Business:  
 
 A) FY 2016-2017 Budget Workshop Update 
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on       Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from www.miamisprings-

fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is made (F. S. 

286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the City Clerk, 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or corporations 
employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City 

Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City personnel during the time 
period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or 
Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall state under oath his or her name, 

business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she 
has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk. 

******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 

 
Presented to 

 

Sharon Okubo & Michael Kilpatrick 
 

Of 
 

156 Carlisle Drive 
 

for their home being designated as 
 

“YARD OF THE MONTH” 
SEPTEMBER, 2016 

 
Presented this 12th day of September, 2016. 

 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

________________________________ 
                              Zavier M. Garcia 
                                     Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________                     
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
                 City Clerk  



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 15, 2016, 2015 6:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:05 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Planner Chris Heid 
Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
Golf Superintendent Laurie Bland 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Bain 
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Workshop on Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget 
 
Opening Remarks by City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
 
City Manager Alonso read the updated staff memo for the record.  
 
He stated that after completing the first workshop the budget shows $150,775 in surplus at 
the millage rate of 7.5000.  The Finance Department demonstrates that there is a $10,000 
reduction in the attorney’s fees for the FOP contract negotiation in the upcoming year.  He 
also stated that in the Public Works Public Properties Division there was an additional 
reduction of $40,000. 
 
 
 
 



 
 2 

 I. Human Resources 
 
Mr. Alonso introduced Bill Collins, the new HR Director.  The budget includes $8,000 for 
new equipment and software for fingerprinting, as well as an increase in pension costs 
related to the hiring of a new HR Director.  The budget is 5.5% higher, or $12,270 than the 
FY15/16. 
  
Mr. Collins and Lt. Deal were available to answer any of the Council’s questions. 
 

II. IT Department 
 
The budget is $4,425 lower than the current year, according to Mr. Alonso.  The IT budget 
includes $6,000 for a new server. 
 
I.T. Director Jorge Fonseca answered Council’s questions and there were no changes to 
the proposed budget. 

 
III. City Attorney 

 
There were no changes to the City Attorney’s budget. 

 
IV. Building Department 

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the Building Department is $38,457 higher than the current year. 
The increase is due to additional funding for inspector pay and increased building activities. 
The Building Department budget is a separate Special Revenue fund.   
 
Building and Code Compliance Director Ulises Fernandez answered questions from 
Council regarding scanning.  He also provided a graph to Council on a recent customer 
service survey that was done recently.  The Council thanked Mr. Fernandez for the 
department’s improvements. 

 
V. Code Compliance 

 
Mr. Alonso commented that the Code Compliance Department is a separate department 
from Building.  He stated that the budget is $19,509 higher than last year due to the 
reclassification of a part-time officer to full-time for FY2017. 
 
 

VI. Parks and Recreation 
 

i. Administration 
 

This item was moved up in the meeting as the first section to be discussed.  The budget 
includes a reduction of $358,927 due to the tot-lot being built in and is 21% lower this 
upcoming fiscal year. This portion of the budget the Pelican Playhouse requesting a 



 
 3 

subsidy of $23,000.  Ralph Wakefield was available to answer any of the Council’s 
questions. 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Luna and Finance Director Alonso answered Council’s 
questions.  

 
ii. Pool 

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the proposed budget for the Pool is approximately $606,033 for the 
new fiscal year.  The budget includes a full time Aquatics Supervisor and a full time head 
lifeguard.  Council requested that the line item for the electric/power service be looked into 
for their further consideration. 

 
Parks and Recreation Director Luna and Finance Director Alonso answered Council’s 
questions. 

 
iii. Tennis 
 

Finance Director Alonso stated that the Tennis operation is basically the same with a 
decrease from last year in the amount of $22,810; there were no questions regarding this 
budget.  Council requested further details on the accomplishment section of the budget. 

 
iv. Park Maintenance 
 

The Park Maintenance budget is approximately $111,392 lower than the current year.  
 

Recreation Director Luna provided an update on the Stafford Park. 
 

VII. Police  
 
Mr. Alonso commented that the Police Department budget is $5,835 or 0.1% lower than 
last year.  Increase of 2% pay raise in accordance with FOP contract, a $10,000 decrease 
in officer pension contribution to 15% since rate was set to increase to 15.5% next year.  
Increase in capital expenditures for four unmarked cars and upgraded technology, $68,870 
in payouts due to retirements, $20,000 in legal fees to cover costs associated with FOP 
contract negotiations, addition of part-time clerical assistant, and the creation of new 
position “Police Recruit” for police candidates that are put through the academy.  
 
Police Chief Guzman answered Council’s questions to their satisfaction.  

 
VIII. LETF Fund 

 
The Community Policing Office, except for personnel, is funded by the Law Enforcement 
Trust Fund based on federal forfeitures and guidelines, according to Chief Guzman.    
There were no changes in this portion of the agenda. 

 



 
 4 

IX. Debt Service 
 
Mr. Alonso explained that the budget shows an increase of $69,993 or 6% higher.  The 
Golf Course debt has been paid off in the current fiscal year.  The Debt Service includes 
the Aquatic Facility payments and Energy Savings Project. 
 
4. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 12th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 22, 2016 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:08 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner  
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
Chief Armando Guzman 
IT Director Jorge Fonseca 
Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Mother Susan Keedy 
 

Salute to the Flag: Members of the audience led the Pledge of Allegiance and 
Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Moira Ramos in 
Recognition of 35 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs Finance 
Department 

 
Mayor Garcia presented a plaque for Ms. Ramos’ years of service to the City.  Ms. 
Ramos shared a few words and thanked everyone for their support over the years. 
  
 B) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Sgt. Thomas 
Kelly in Recognition of 35 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs Police 
Department 
 
 



 
 2 

Mayor Garcia presented a plaque for Sgt. Kelly’s years of service to the City.  Sgt. 
Kelly stated a few words of thanks and recognized his family and the police 
department for their support throughout the years. 

 
 C) Recognizing Reverend Susan Keedy for her years of service to All Angels 
Academy and Episcopal Church in Miami Springs 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Mother Keedy with a certificate of recognition for her years 
of service to All Angels and to the City of Miami Springs. 
 
 D) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Eloise Head on her 92nd 
birthday 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Ms. Head’s daughter with a certificate of recognition in 
celebration of her mother’s 90th birthday. 
 
 E) Recognizing Nicole San Martin for her Community Service at the Butterfly 
Garden in front of the Library 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Ms. San Martin with a certificate of recognition for her 
service to the City of Miami Springs and contribution to the butterfly garden. 
 
 F) Presentation by Jorge Ferrer, Bermello & Ajamil, on the Aquatic Facility 
Punchlist Completion Timeline 
 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso read the staff memo for the record.  Mr. Ferrer 
stated that everything on the punchlist was created by him and for Lunacon to 
correct in a certain timeline.  He stated that there are three major corrections to the 
pool deck and slide that need to be rectified and there is a correction plan.  Mr. 
Ferrer addressed the City Council’s questions. 
  
4. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Evelio Cabrera, 459 Hunting Lodge Drive. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 1, 2016 - Workshop Meeting 
B) August 8, 2016 - Regular Meeting 
 

Councilman Best moved to approve the minutes of August 1, 2016, and August 8, 
2016.  Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman 
Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  
 
 



 
 3 

 A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of August 
9, 2016 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period Actions by BOA 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the actions of the Board of Adjustment.  
Councilman Bain seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote 
was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
7. Public Hearings: None. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

 
A) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 

current open purchase order with Coca Cola Beverages, as a sole source provider of their 
products, in an amount not to exceed $2,000.00, for purchase of Coca Cola products for 
resale as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) 
of the City Code 

 
B) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 

current open purchase order with The Anderson’s, INC, as a sole source provider and 
manufacturer of their products, in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, for micro granulated 
fertilizers for the greens at the golf course as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget 
pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 

current open purchase order with Harrell’s, piggybacking off the Miami Dade contract # 
9020-1/19-1, in an amount not to exceed $10,000.00, for customized liquid fertilizers for 
the golf course as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
D) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 

current open purchase order with Howard’s Fertilizer and Chemical, utilizing the Town of 
Davie # B14-25 contract, in an amount not to exceed $10,000.00, for fertilizer blends for 
the golf course as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
E) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's 

current open purchase order with Florida Superior Sand, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County 
contract # 9408-1/14-1, in an amount not to exceed $6,000.00, for medium grade sand for 
the golf course as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 
(E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
 F) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to the 
City’s current open Purchase order with Miami Tiresoles, utilizing Miami Dade County 
contract #15/17-07-0220 in an amount not to exceed $3,000.00, for tire which exceeds the 
originally budgeted amount of $30,000.00 in the FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 
§31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code 
 



 
 4 

City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso read the Consent Items by title. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Councilman Petralanda 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 
9. Old Business:  
 
 A) Appointments/Re-appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council 
Members 
 
No appointments were made at this time. 
 

B) East Side Parking Issue Update 
 

This item was heard after the presentations, Councilman Bain moved to approve 
staff’s recommendation.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 
on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, 
Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
10. New Business:  
 
 A) Consideration of approval of a five year renewal agreement with American 
Traffic Solutions to maintain the City’s Red Light Camera Enforcement Program  
  
This item was pulled by Administration prior to the meeting. 
 
 B) Recommendation from Police that the Council approve the use of metal 
detectors by the Miami Springs Police Department at the entrance to City Hall prior to any 
Regular, Special or workshop meetings held in the Council Chambers 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve staff’s recommendation.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 4-1 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes; Councilman Bain voting No. 
 
 C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 
expenditure of $12,200.00, to City of Miami Police Training Center, the lowest responsible 
quote after obtaining three written quotes (attached), for tuition for two (2) Police Recruits 
this September, as funds are available in the FY15/16 Budget, pursuant to Section 
§31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the Police’s recommendation.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 



 
 5 

 
 D) Consideration of temporary installation of wallscape signage for future 
Council determination of related ordinance amendments 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso read the staff memo for the record. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the request for 800 sq. ft. and 1200 sq. ft. 
wallscapes at Management Resources University located at 700 South Royal 
Poinciana to be installed for a period no longer than 60 days.  Councilman Best 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
 E) Discussion of possible locations and the planning phases for the construction 
of a new multi-purpose facility that will include a Senior Center 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso read the staff memo for the record. 
 
Evelio Cabrera, 540 Hunting Lodge Drive and John Souder, address exempt from the 
record addressed the City Council. 
 
Councilman Bain made a motion to approve staff’s recommendation, location in the 
photo, as the proposed location for the design-build proposal for the new senior 
center at the Curtiss Mansion.  Councilman Best seconded the motion; after further 
discussion, Councilman Bain withdrew his motion from the floor. 
 
The Council further discussed locations and available properties that the City could 
look into.  Karen Rosson, Elderly Services Director, addressed the City Council. City 
Council requested for further information in reference to the land that is owned by 
the hotel and to identify the location of the water/sewer lines located in the proposed 
location.  After further discussion, the City Council decided that they will discuss the 
RFP design-build funding allocation at the next budget workshop on August 29, 
2016.   
 
 F)  Recommendation from Board of Parks and Parkways to renovate coral rock 
walls in the median along Morningside Drive from Navarre Street to Minola Drive 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the recommendation made by staff.  Vice Mayor 
Buckner seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
11.  Other Business: None at this time. 
 

 12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 
 



 
 6 

 
A) City Attorney  

 
City Attorney Seiden had no report at this time.   
 

B) City Manager 
 
The City Manager reminded the Council and the public that the City’s birthday is August 
23rd and officially celebrates its 90th birthday, he reminded the public that registration for fall 
baseball is August 29th, the City’s 90th Birthday celebration “Kick-off” party is August 27th at 
7pm at 85 Deer Run, he announced that the Smithsonian Institute starts its Water/Ways 
Exhibit on September 10th to October 22nd.  He also stated that the 90th Birthday Golf 
tourney at the Country Club is September 10th at 10am and also the Family Swim and Fun 
Day at the Aquatic Center from 10am to 2pm. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Councilman Bain recommended that there is outerwear that helps prevents mosquito bites 
and the transfer of the Zika virus.  
 
Councilman Petralanda stated that school is back in session and wished for everyone to 
drive safe and be safe. 
 
Councilman Best stated that the connections article was a good article on the City 
Manager. 
 
Mayor Garcia reminded the public that soccer season is also going to start and registration 
is open.  He announced that his son has officially transferred to Miami Springs Senior High 
and is a Hawk. 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 7 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 12th day of September, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 
 
 

 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Thursday, September 1, 2016 
 

 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 

 
The Board of Adjustment met in Regular Session at 6:30 p.m., on Thursday, 
September 1, 2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
 
1) Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:36 p.m.    
 
The following were present: Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  
     Bob Calvert 

Juan Molina 
     Alejandro Gonzalez 
 
Absent:    Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
     Martin L. Marquez 
      
      
Also present:    Zoning and Planning Director Chris Heid 
     Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
 
2)  Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes for the August 9, 2016 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the minutes as written. Board member 
Gonzalez seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 4-0 on voice vote. 
 
 
3) Swearing In of All Witnesses and Zoning and Planning Director:  
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the applicants or 
representatives of the applicants who would testify should the Board have any 
questions. 
 
4) New Business:  
 
 

A) Case # 09-V-16 
 RICARDO VALENCIA & JOHANA CASTILLO 
 401 PAYNE DRIVE 
 Zoning: R-1C, RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 2 

Applicant is seeking a rear yard setback variance in order to construct a one story 
addition to an existing single family house by squaring off an existing legal non-
conforming setback. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there were any correspondence in favor or against this 
case. Zoning and Planning Director Heid responded that no correspondence have been 
received  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked the applicant if the three inches encroachment for the door 
was necessary for this project. He also asked the applicant if the existing canopy will be 
removed. 
 
The applicant, Johanna Castillo responded that the three inch variance request was to 
handle the swing of the door better as it opens to the landing. Mrs. Castillo informed the 
Board that the existing canopy will be removed. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid added that the three inch variance request was 
minor and was added along with the significant request for the rear yard setback 
because it did not create much impact on the rest of the project. Zoning and Planning 
Director Heid added that if this was the only variance that was being requested, he 
would have advised the applicant against this and to just leave the maximum permitted 
thirty-six inches encroachment as is. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there were any further questions or discussion from any 
Board members. There was no further discussion at this time. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the variance requested with the three 
conditions listed in the Zoning and Planning Director’s recommendation. Board 
member Gonzalez seconded the motion, which passed 4-0 on voice vote. 

 
Chair Pérez-Vichot advised the applicant of the 10 day appeal period.  
 
 
5) Old Business: None. 
 
 
6) Adjournment 
 
There was no further business to be discussed and the meeting was adjourned at 6:46 
p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

[This space intentionally left blank] 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 3 

Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                                  
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent changes. 
All other words remain unchanged. 
 
************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
************************************************************************** 



      
 
 1 

 
 RESOLUTION NO.  2016 –    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS TENTATIVELY 
APPROVING FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
BUDGET; CONFIRMING DATE, TIME AND 
PLACE OF FINAL PUBLIC HEARING 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Miami Springs has given careful 

consideration to the anticipated expenses and various sources of revenue available for 
carrying on the functions of city government and has tentatively approved a millage levy for 
Fiscal Year 2016-2017 of 7.5000 mills; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with provisions of the City Charter and State law, 

the City Council has presented the proposed millage levy and budget document for Fiscal 
Year 2016-2017, and has conducted a public hearing to allow all interested persons to be 
heard regarding the proposals of any item thereof: 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1: That a budget as set forth and included herein by reference in the 
amounts as follows be and the same is hereby tentatively approved for Fiscal Year 2016-
2017 and all sums are appropriated for the purposes stated herein: 
 

    Expense 
 Revenues &    Appropriations 

          Funds                   Reserves     and Reserves    
 
General Fund:   $16,034,237   $16,034.237 
Special Revenue Funds:      1,979.601          1,979.601     
Enterprise Fund:                            3,045,338                 3,045,338 
Debt Service Fund:        896,916                    896,916 
 __________     _________                       

TOTALS           $21,956,902   $21,956,092 
       

 
Section 2:  That the City Council will conduct a final public hearing on the 

proposed budget and all items thereof, at 7:00 p.m., on Monday, September 26, 2016, in 
the City Hall Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



      
 
 2 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, Florida, 
this    day of   , 2016, on a motion by     and seconded 
by    . 

 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner        
Councilman Best        
Councilman Bain        
Councilman Petralanda       
Mayor Garcia      

 
 
 
              

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
 
      
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 

 



September 7 for August

General Fund Departments Cost Hours

Office of the City Clerk 3,712.50         27.50
Human Resources Department 329.62            2.44
Risk Management 168.75            1.25
Finance Department 958.50            7.10
Professional Services 0.00
Building,Zoning & Planning Department 1,822.50         13.50
Code Enforcement 641.25            4.75
Police Department 929.25            6.88
Public Works Department 607.50            4.50
Recreation Department 262.12            1.94
IT Department 0.00
Golf 1,140.75         8.45
Senior 0.00
General - Administrative Work 2,900.26         21.48
Sub-total - General Fund $13,473.00 99.80

Special Revenue, Trust & Agency Funds
Golf Course Operations 0.00
L.E.T.F. 0.00
Due from Pension Funds 0.00
Sub-total - Special Funds $0.00 0.00

GRAND TOTAL:  ALL FUNDS $13,473.00 99.80

The City of Miami Springs
     Summary of Monthly Attorney Invoice

Orshan, Lithman, Seiden, Ramos, Hatton & Huesmann, LLP





    

 
 
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK 
201 Westward Drive 
Miami Springs, FL 33166-5259 
Phone: 305.805.5006 
Fax: 305.805.5028 

 

 
TO:  Honorable Mayor Garcia and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM:  Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, City Clerk  
 
DATE:  May 5, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: PENDING BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
************************************************************************************************************************************** 
The following appointments are pending: 

 NEW               ORIGINAL   LAST 
APPOINTMENT CURRENT  TERM  APPOINTMENT      APPOINTMENT 
COUNCILMEMBER  MEMBER     EXPIRES     DATE           DATE        
 
Board of Adjustment/Zoning and Planning Board   
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Juan Molina  04-30-2018 01-29-2015 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Bob Calvert  04-30-2018 01-28-2013 11-09-2015 
Bain Vice Mayor   Ernie Aloma  04-30-2019 04-13-2009 01-11-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Martin Marquez  04-30-2019 01-11-2010 05-14-2012 
Councilman Petralanda  Manuel Pérez-Vichot 04-30-2017 12-14-1998 11-09-2015 
Mayor Garcia   Alejandro Gonzalez 10-31-2018 12-03-2015 12-03-2015  
 
Architectural Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Marc Scavuzzo*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Valentine Soler  10-31-2016  01-14-2013 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Joe Valencia*  10-31-2016  02-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Fredy Albiza*  10-31-2016  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Ana Paula Ibarra * 10-31-2016  10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
 
Code Enforcement Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Jorge Filgueira*  11-30-2017  08-27-2012 11-09-2015 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Walter Dworak  09-30-2016  11-14-2005 09-14-2010 
Councilman Best   Marlene B. Jiménez 09-30-2018  03-02-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   John Bankston  09-30-2017  09-23-2002 11-09-2015  
Councilman Bain   Rhonda Calvert  09-30-2017  09-25-2006 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner Jacqueline Martinez Regueira 09-30-2018  06-09-2003 11-09-2015   
Councilman Petralanda  Robert (Bob) Williams 09-30-2016  03-10-2008 10-25-2010 
 
Code Review Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  04-30-2018   
Councilman Best   Maria (Nuñez) Garrett 04-30-2017 05-08-2009 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Arthur Freyre  04-30-2017 05-19-2009 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  Maria Fernandez  04-30-2019 08-11-2003 05-24-2010 
Councilman Petralanda  Jana Armstrong  04-30-2019 06-11-2001 05-10-2010 
 
Disability Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  VACANT  12-31-2016  
Councilman Best   Catherine Stadnik 12-31-2016 12-14-1998 02-14-2011 
Vice Mayor Bain   Grace Bain  12-31-2016 01-13-2014 01-13-2014 
Councilwoman Buckner  Richard Barnes  12-31-2016 05-11-2009 01-24-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Thomas W. Cannon 12-31-2016   
 
 



 
Ecology Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Wendy Anderson Booher*04-30-2018 01-12-2009 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Trina Aguila  04-30-2018 10-28-2013 11-09-2015   
Vice Mayor Bain   Carl Malek*  04-30-2017 11-22-2010 05-09-2011 
Councilwoman Buckner  James Steele  04-30-2019 09-09-2013 09-09-2013 
Councilman Petralanda  Michael Kobiakov 04-30-2019 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
Education Advisory Board  
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Alyssa C. Roelans 05-31-2017 02-17-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Constantino Hernandez 05-31-2017 04-27-2015 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Mara Zapata* 05-31-2017 06-13-2011 11-09-2015  
Councilwoman Buckner  Ilia Molina   05-31-2017 02-05-2015 11-09-2015  
Councilman Petralanda   Dan Bradley  05-31-2017 05-13-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Golf and Country Club Advisory Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Michael Domínguez* 07-31-2017 04-12-2010 11-09-2015  
Councilman Best   Mark Safreed  07-31-2017 08-08-2005 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   George Heider  07-31-2017 08-13-2001 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Ken Amendola*  07-31-2017 10-10-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Art Rabade  07-31-2017 03-11-2013 11-09-2015 
 
Historic Preservation Board 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Sydney Garton  01-31-2019 11-08-1993 02-08-2010 
Councilman Best   Charles M. Hill  02-28-2018 03-08-2004 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Yvonne Shonberger 02-28-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner  Dr. James Watson 02-28-2018 06-09-2014 11-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Jo Ellen Phillips  01-31-2019 2-14-2013 08-26-2013 
 
Board of Parks & Parkways 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  Eric Richey  04-30-2018 02-13-1989 11-09-2015 
Councilman Best   Tammy K. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-27-2006 11-09-2015 
Vice Mayor Bain   Lynne V. Brooks* 04-30-2018 08-08-2011 11-09-2015 
Councilwoman Buckner  Irene Priess  04-30-2017 08-13-2001 04-25-2011 
Councilman Petralanda  Lee Fisher  04-30-2017 03-23-2015 03-23-2015   
 
Recreation Commission 
Mayor Zavier Garcia  E. Jorge Santin  04-30-2019 04-14-2008 12-13-2010 
Councilman Best   Mark A. Johnston 04-30-2018 04-22-2013 04-22-2013 
Vice Mayor Bain   Dr. Stephanie Kondy 04-30-2017 06-13-2005 09-10-2012 
Councilwoman Buckner   Miguel Becerra  04-30-2017 09-09-2015 09-09-2015 
Councilman Petralanda  Alexander Anthony 04-30-2019 08-12-2013 08-12-2013 
 
 * Architectural Review Board 
  Ecology Board - Council confirmation required per §32.40  
  Education Advisory Board - Council confirmation required per §32.99 (A) 
  Board of Parks and Parkways – Council confirmation required per §32.30  
   
  “No Board/Commission member who shall have served three consecutive terms of office shall be eligible to serve 

an additional term of office for two years thereafter, unless the appointment for any additional term shall be 
confirmed by a majority of the City Council.” 

 





 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016 -  
 

A RESOLUTION  OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY  OF  
MIAMI SPRINGS,  FLORIDA,  AU T H O R I Z I N G  AN D  
APPROVING CORRESPONDENCE TO MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY  IN  SUPPORT OF THE FOUR-MUNICIPALITY 
ANNEXATION AGREEMENT INVOLVING THE CITY OF 
DORAL, THE TOWN OF MEDLEY, THE VILLAGE  OF 
VIRGINIA GARDENS, AND THE CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS;   
AUTHORIZING   THE   CITY   MANAGER  AND   THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE SUBJECT CORRESPONDENCE 
AND TRANSMIT  THE SAME  TO MIAMI-DADE COUNTY; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2016, the City of Miami Springs (the "City") passed 

and adopted Resolution No. 2016-3672, reconfirming its intentions, consistent with 
its prior resolutions and ordinances, and  continuing  its  efforts,  in  initiating  and  
requesting proposed  boundary  changes  to the  City  by the annexation  of 
property  described  in the prior Four Municipality Annexation Agreement; and, 

 
WHEREAS, it is well recognized that the City's annexation efforts, that 

began in 2002, were done in concert with the three (3) other neighboring 
municipalities; the Village of Virginia Gardens, the Town of Medley, and the City of 
Doral; and, 

 
WHEREAS,  each  municipality  hired  consultants,  engineers  and  other 

professionals  to assist it in its discussions  with the other municipalities  as to 
boundary lines and with the county on all other annexation topics; and, 

 
WHEREAS,   over  the  following  several  years,   Miami-Dade   County  

provided Assistant County Managers and other County administrative staff 
personnel to attend the joint meetings of the four municipalities to assist in 
reaching an agreement  as to the proper and appropriate division of the available 
sections of County UMSA areas; and; 

 
WHEREAS, although there had been much discussion and debate regarding 

the proposed annexation boundaries amongst the four municipalities during these 
several years, in 2009 the four municipalities finally agreed to the proper and 
appropriate division of the available sections ("Four Municipality Agreement"), and 
each filed amended applications for annexation with the County reflecting the 
agreed upon boundary lines; and, 

 
WHEREAS, for more than a decade, the four municipalities and Miami-

Dade County staff personnel have expended extraordinary efforts and man hours, 
incurred substantial costs and expenses, and conducted innumerable public 
hearings and other meetings in the investigation, evaluation, and support of the 
pending annexation of the available sections of unincorporated Miami-Dade County; 
and, 

 
 



 

WHEREAS, while slight changes to the boundaries have taken place 
involving the other municipalities, the City of Miami Springs desires to formally 
advise Miami-Dade County that the City's pending application and the applications 
of the other municipalities are submitted in accordance with terms and spirit of the 
“Four Municipality Agreement.” 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1.   Recitals.       The above   recitals  are  confirmed,  adopted,  
and incorporated herein and made a part hereof by this reference. 

 
Section 2.  Authorization and Approval.      The "Annexation Letter," 

attached hereto as Exhibit "A", which is hereby incorporated herein and made a part 
hereof by this reference, is hereby authorized and approved by the City Council of the 
City of Miami Springs. 

 
 Section 3: Effective Date. That the provisions of this Resolution shall be 
effective immediately upon adoption by the City Council. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Miami Springs, 
Florida, this ___ day of ______, 2016, on a motion by ____________________ and 
seconded by ___________________. 
  
 

Vice Mayor Buckner  ___    
Councilman Best  ___    
Councilman Bain  ___    
Councilman Petralanda ___    
Mayor Garcia  ___  

 
 
         
             

Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           
 
       
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM:    
 
 
       
Jan K. Seiden, City Attorney 
 



 

 
Section 3.    Authorization.       The City Manager and the Mayor are hereby 

authorized to execute the Annexation Letter on behalf of the City and to transmit same 
to Miami-Dade County in support of the City's Annexation Applications. 

Section 4.   Implementation.   The City Manager, the City Clerk and the 
City Attorney are hereby authorized to take such action as may be necessary to 
implement the provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 5.    Effective  Date. This resolution shall take effect immediately 
upon adoption. 



Res. No. 16-157 
Page 4 of4 

 

 
The foregoing Resolution was offered by Councilmember Cabrera who moved its 
adoption. The motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Fraga and upon being put to a vote, 
the vote was as follows: 

Mayor Luigi Boria                                            Yes 
Vice Mayor Christi Fraga                                 Yes 
Councilman Pete Cabrera                               Yes 
Councilwoman Ana Maria Rodriguez               Yes 
Councilwoman Sandra Ruiz                             Yes 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 10 day of August, 20 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CITY CLERK 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WEISS, SEROTA,  FMAN, COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. 
CITY ATTORNEY 

 



 

 
    
 

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR 

201 WESTWARD DRIVE 

MIAMI SPRINGS, FL 33166 

  

 

     
   

       TELEPHONE: 

      305-805-5006                           

      FAX: 

      305-805-5028 

 
September 13, 2016 
 
Mr. Jorge Femandez 
Office of Management & Budget Coordinator Community  
Redevelopment & Municipal Services Miami-Dade County 
Stephen P. Clark Center 
111 NW 151 Street, 22nd Floor 
Miami, FL 33128 
 
Re:  City of Miami Springs Annexation Application; 
 Four Municipality Annexation Agreement 
 
Dear Mr. Fernandez: 
 
On behalf of the City of Miami Springs (the "City" or "Miami Springs"), it is our pleasure to 
submit this letter to Miami-Dade County (the "County")  in support of the City's annexation 
application, as well as those  of our  neighbors-   the Village  of Virginia  Gardens  ("VG"),  the 
City of  Doral  ("Doral"),  and  the  Town  of  Medley  ("Medley")  (collectively,  the  "Four 
Municipalities"),  involving  certain  enclaved  unincorporated  municipal  service  areas  located 
between  and  amongst   the  Four  Municipalities  (generally,  "UMSA   Properties").  Please 
allow the following to explain. 
 
As you are well-aware, the discussion regarding the annexation of the UMSA Properties initiated in 
2002.  In  2004,  the  Four  Municipalities  each  began  its  own  investigation  and evaluation 
of the annexation process and the UMSA Properties, each contracting a variety of professionals to 
assist in the process. The Four Municipalities also began discussions to negotiate the amicable 
division of the UMSA Properties. Pursuant to section 6.4 of the County Home Rule Charter and 
Section 20-3 of the Miami-Dade County Code, in 2004, the Four Municipalities submitted 
annexation applications. Between 2004 and 2008, the Four Municipalities continued negotiations,   
ultimately   reaching   an agreement   to the division of the UMSA Properties (commonly referred 
to as, the "Four-City Deal"). As a result, the Four Municipalities submitted revised annexation 
applications and reinitiated the annexation process in 2008 in line with the Four City Deal. After 
years of inactivity, regrettably, the annexation applications for the Four Municipalities "died in 
committee," when the Land-Use Committee of the County Commission failed to take any action in 
2014. On May 23, 2016, Miami Springs passed and adopted  Resolution 2016-3672 reconfirming  
its  intentions,  consistent  with  its prior resolutions and ordinances, and  continuing  its  efforts,  
in  initiating  and requesting  proposed  boundary changes to the City by the annexation  of 
property described  in the prior  Four Municipality Agreement. It is our understanding that Doral, 
VG, and Medley have similarly resubmitted or in process of preparing applications for resubmission. 
 
While  slight changes  to the boundaries in some of the other municipalities have taken  place, 
Miami Springs desires  to formally  advise  the County  that the City 's  pending  application  and 
the pending  applications of the other  municipalities are submitted   in accordance with  terms  
and  spirit  the  Four Municipality  Agreement. As such,  based  on the fourteen-year history  of  
these  applications,  the  prudence  of  having  better-balanced  municipalities, and the elimination 
of enclaves in the County,  Miami Springs urges County staff to provide favorable 
recommendations  for,   and   the   Board   of  County   Commissioners  to   approve,   the   
annexations applications of the Four Municipalities in line with the Four Municipality Agreement, all 
of which  have been formulated in consultation with County staff. 



 

 
 
 
 
On  behalf  of  the  City,  we  certainly   appreciate the  time  and  consideration  for  this  very 
important  pending  matter.   Should you wish to discuss any of the foregoing or any details of 
Miami Springs’ annexation application, we welcome the opportunity to speak with you at your 
convenience. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
 
 
Zavier M. Garcia 
Mayor 
City of Miami Springs 
 
 
 
 
William Alonso 
City Manager 
City of Miami Springs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attachments:   
 
Cc:  The Honorable City Council, City of Miami Springs 
 The Honorable Jose "Pepe" Diaz, Miami -Dade County Commissioner, District 12 
 The Honorable Rebeca Sosa, Miami-Dade County Commissioner, District 6 
 Mr. Edward A. Rojas, City Manager, City of Doral  
 The Honorable Mayor & City Council, City of Doral  
 The Honorable Mayor & Council, Town of Medley 
 The Honorable Mayor & Council, Village of Virginia Gardens 
 































































































































































































































































































   

Historic Preservation Board   Wednesday, August 17, 2016 1 

 
   

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 
The Miami Springs Historic Preservation Board met at 7:00 p.m., on Wednesday, 
August 17, 2016 in the City Hall Council Chambers. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 7:08 p.m. 
 
1) Call to Order/Roll Call 

 
The following were present: Chair Sydney Garton 
     Vice Chair Jo Ellen Phillips     
     Charles M. Hill 
     James Watson     

Yvonne Shonberger 
     
 
Also Present:    Board Secretary, Juan D. Garcia 
      
     
 
2)  Approval of Minutes:  May 18, 2016 Regular Meeting and July 20, 2016 

Special meeting  
 

Board member Hill made a correction on page 2, paragraph 2, under item d) Discussion 
on Scenic Highway Designation: the word “Decurignation” needs to be corrected to 
“Designation.” 
 
Minutes of the May 18, 2016 meeting were approved as amended. 
 
Vice Chair Phillips moved to approve the minutes as amended and Board member 
Watson seconded the motion, which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
Minutes of the July 20, 2016 meeting were approved as written 
 
Board member Shonberger moved to approve the minutes as written and Board 
member Hill seconded the motion, which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 

 
 
 
 



   

Historic Preservation Board   Wednesday, August 17, 2016 2 

3) New Business: 
 

a. Certificate of Appropriateness – 200 Azure Way 
  
The applicant is seeking to restore aluminum awnings at the Osceola Hotel located on 
200 Azure Way. 
 
Michael Kobiakov, owner of 200 Azure Way, informed the Board that the awnings had 
been restored to as close to their original state as possible. 
 
Miguel Bello of 2110 SW 125 CT and the contractor for the project explained they are 
before the Board to legalize the awnings that had already been installed. Mr. Bello 
added that they recreated the awnings for the Osceola Hotel from pictures of the 
original building as they have done with the rest of the building. 
 
Mr. Kobiakov presented the plans and material of the awnings to the Board. 
 
Chair Garton asked how many awnings were installed. 
 
Mr. Bello responded that there are five small awnings over the entry ways and one 
larger awning, which is about double the size of the smaller awnings, above the main 
entrance. 
 
Board member Watson asked why is it that they are trying to obtain approval for a 
Certificate of Appropriateness now instead of before the awnings were installed.  
 
Mr. Bello explained that after the building permit was closed, Mr. Kobiakov hired a 
company to install the awnings and was under the assumption that they had received 
approval from all the parties necessary to legally install the awnings. It was not until 
after the awnings had been installed that they became aware that the awnings did not 
have the proper permits to be put up. 
 
Board member Hill moved to approve the Certificate of Appropriateness for the 
awnings on 200 Azure Way. Vice Chair Phillips seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 

b. Certificate of Appropriateness – 281 Glendale Drive 
 

The applicant is seeking to construct a new four bedroom structure and restore aspects 
of the existing structure. 
  
The applicant, Sandra Parker submitted a power of attorney to be represented by her 
granddaughter. 
 
Azia Parker-Cruz, the applicant’s granddaughter gave a brief background on the history 
of property since it has been owned by her grandmother. Mrs. Parker-Cruz explained 
that her grandmother has recently put the Hunting Lodge up for sale. She has been 
looking for buyers that are very aware of the historical value of the property and that are 
interested in preserving it. Mrs. Parker-Cruz also added that she has received many 
offers for the property form potential buyers that are mostly interested in the 17,000 
square foot lot, but not interested in preserving the cabin. Recently a couple has 



   

Historic Preservation Board   Wednesday, August 17, 2016 3 

submitted an offer on the property. This coupe is interested in making a four bedroom 
addition to the existing structure. 
  
Mario Duron, the potential buyer of the property was present and addressed the board 
regarding the proposed project. He provided floor plan for the project to the Board. 
 
Board member Watson asked if he had any elevation drawings for the project. 
 
Mr. Duron responded that he did not have any elevation drawings at this time. Mr. 
Duron added that he has been working with the City Planner. Mr. Duron continued to 
explain the project that is being proposed and how he intends to preserve the history of 
this property. 
 
Board member Shonberger moved to table this item until the applicant has 
elevation drawings completed for the Boards review. Vice Chair Phillips 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 

c. Final Review of Designation Report of the Michael House – 27 Hunting 
Lodge Drive 

 
Chair Garton asked if both letters from the designation process have been sent to the 
property owner. 
 
Board Secretary Garcia responded that both letters had been sent out to the property 
owner. The letters were sent on May 23. If the designation report is approved the 
moratorium would take into effect and a copy of the approved report would be sent to 
property owners. 
 
Vice Chair Phillips asked if there were any correspondence from the owner.  
 
Board Secretary Garcia informed the Board that no correspondence have been 
received by the City Clerk’s Office from the property owner. The letters were sent by 
certified mail and signed by the owners upon receiving them, but nothing else has been 
sent back regarding the designation of this property.  
 
Chair Garton and Board member Shonberger reviewed the designation report one final 
time.  
 
Board member Hill moved to approve and submit the Designation Report for the 
Michael House – 27 Hunting Lodge Drive as written. Board member Shonberger 
seconded the motion, which carried unanimously on voice vote. 
 
Board Secretary Garcia notified the Board that this report will be filed with the City Clerk 
and the moratorium will take into effect. 
 
Chair Garton selected the next Historic Preservation Board meeting, which will be held 
on Wednesday, October 19th, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. to hold the public hearing for the 
Michael House – 27 Hunting Lodge Drive. The meeting as usual will take place in the 
City Council Chambers. 
 
 



   

Historic Preservation Board   Wednesday, August 17, 2016 4 

 
 

d. Pioneer History Profile: Fran Whiteman 
 
The Board discussed Mrs. Fran Whiteman and her history of living in the City of Miami 
Springs.  
 
Board member Watson asked the criteria on how the Board determines who qualifies as 
a Pioneer Resident.  
 
Board member Shonberger responded that the person would need to be a resident of 
Miami Springs for at least fifty years to qualify. 
 
Vice Chair Phillips moved approve and recommend the Pioneer History Profile for 
Fran Whiteman. Board member Hill seconded the motion, which carried 
unanimously on voice vote. 
  

e. Discussion on additional historical sites to be designated 
 
Discussion ensued regarding if this item should be discussed or tabled. The Board 
chose to table this item for the next meeting. 
 
 
4) Other Business: 
 

a. Curtiss Mansion Report 
 
Vice Chair Phillips gave the Board an update on how the construction of the parking lot 
has been coming along. Vice Chair Phillips commented that FDOT and DERM have 
both inspected the lot and have approved the project. In addition, the contractors and 
engineers are working longer days recently in order to meet the September 1st deadline. 
Although the recent rain has created some challenges, the parking lot is actually ahead 
of schedule.  
 
Vice Chair Phillips informed the Board that the trees surrounding the parking lot will be 
replanted tomorrow.  
  

b. Update from the Miami-Dade County Mayor’s Commission guidelines for 
Historic Preservation 

 
Vice Chair Phillips reported that there has not been any new information regarding the 
County Mayor’s Commission. She noted that there probably will be more information to 
report and discuss by the next time the Board meets. 
  

c. Reports from Board Members 
 
Board member Shonberger reminded the Board that on August 27th, the Miami Springs 
Historical Society and the City will be hosting a kick-off party for the City’s 90th

 Birthday 
Celebration. The kick-off party will take place at 85 Deer Run. 
 



   

Historic Preservation Board   Wednesday, August 17, 2016 5 

There were no more reports from Board members at this time. 
 

d. Information/ Reports from Board Liaison from City Council 
 
The Board Liaison was not present. 
 
 
5) Preparation of the Agenda for the Next Board Meeting:  
 

 Public Hearing for the Michael House – 27 Hunting Lodge Drive 
 Discussion on additional historic sites to be designated 
 Update from the Miami-Dade County Mayor’s Commission guidelines for Historic 

Preservation. 
 
 
6) Adjourn 
There was no further business to discuss and the meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
  
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                                                                      
Juan D. Garcia                                                                       
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2015.                                                  
 
 
                                                                                   
Sydney R. Garton, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent changes. 
All other words remain unchanged. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen Advisory 
Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, which may only be 
established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of the City Council.  
***********************************************************************************************************************  
 






















	Agenda Summary - September 12, 2016
	Agenda Summary - p. 2
	Agenda Summary - p. 3

	3A Yard of the Month - Sept.pdf
	5A Minutes - August 15, 2016
	5B Minutes - August 22, 2016 RM.pdf
	6A Board of Adjustment - Approval of Actions Sept. 1, 2016
	7A Resolution - Tentative Budget Approval
	8A Attorney's Invoice for August 2016
	8B Approval of PO Increase for Acushnet
	9A Appointments to Advisory Boards
	9B Resolution - Annexation Resolution and Letter
	10A ATS Agreement Renewal
	10B Selection of Farmers Market Applicant
	10C Designation of Funds for Senior Center Design/Build RFP
	10D Approval of Renew PACE Agreement
	10E AGM Letter of Interest for MS Golf and Country Club
	10F Cannabis Dispensaries Consideration
	10G Approval of Pension Contribtion for Police 
	10H Approval of Banking Services by BB&T
	10I Code Compliance Alley Sweep
	10J Recommendation of HPB for Pioneer Award
	11A Budget Workshop Update
	Copy of Invoice-September.pdf
	Sheet1




